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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Sixth Annual General Meeting of MICROSE

INDIA LIMITED will be held on Friday, 27th September,2024 at 3:00 P.M. at the registered

office of the Company situated at 421, Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400

021, Maharashtra, India to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended

March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors

thereon and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without

modification, the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 134(3) and 137(1) of the companies act,

2013 (the act) read with The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (including any

statutory modification, re-enactment made thereof for the time being in force, if any),

the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to approve Audited Financial

Statements for the year ended March 31,2024 together with the Reports of the Board

of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To consider the re-appointment of Mrs. Nisha Garg (DIN: 06379024) as a Director of
the Company who is liable to retire by rotation and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as

Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 152(6) and any other

applicablc provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the consent of the members
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be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mrs. Nisha Garg (DIN: 06379024) as

Director of the Company who retire by rotation and being eligible offer himself for re-

appointment."

FOR MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

sd/-

Shyam Sunder Agrawal

Director

DIN: 00355837

Date: 30.08.2024

Place: Mumbai
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Notes:

l) The relevant details pursuant to Regulation 26 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, in respect to the profile of

the Directors to be reappointed is enclosed as Annexure I;

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to

attend the meeting and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy

shall not vote except on a poll. The instrument appointing the proxy must be deposited at

the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of

the meeting.

A person appointed as proxy shall act on behalf of such member or number of members

not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total

share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten

percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a

single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or

shareholder.

The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed fiom

September 2}th, 2024 to S eptemb er 26th, 2024 (B oth days incl usive).

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes

pertaining to their bank details, National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS), Electronic

Clearing Service (ECS), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address,

change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their Depository Participant

(DP). Changes intirnated to the DP will then be automatically reflccted in the Company's

records which will help the Company and the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents,

M/s. Bigsliare Services Private Lirnited to provide efficient and better services.
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6) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to M/s.

Bigshare Services Private Limited;

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their

holding to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and

for ease of portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or M/s. Bigshare

Services Limited for assistance in this regard;

Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one

folio are requested to send to the Company or M/s. Bigshare Services Limited, the details

of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holding in one

folio. A consolidated share certificate will be returned to such Members after making

requ isite changes thereon;

In case ofjoint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the

first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company willbe

entitled to vote;

10)In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act and the Rules framed

thereunder, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically,

through the e-voting services provided by NSDL, on all resolutions set forth in this

Notice;

1)Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained

under Section 170 of Companies Act,2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements in

which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,2013

will be available for inspection by the membcrs at the Annual Ceneral Meeting;

12)Mcmbcrs/Proxics should fill the attendance slip for aftending the meeting and hring tlrcir

attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the meeting. Members who
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hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID and

those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number in the

attendance slip for attending the Meeting;

13) Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the

meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution

authorizing such a representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting;

14)All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection at the registered office of

the Company between Business hours on allworking days up to the date of the Meeting;

l5)Members are requested to address all correspondences, including dividend matters, to the

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited E- Office

No 56-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacte Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,

Andheri (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra,400093.

Tel No: 022 - 62638261

Email: info@bieshareonline.com / prasadm@bi gshareonl ine.com

l6)Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act,2013, Members holding shares in physical

form are advised to file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company's

share transfer agent. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Registrar and Share

Transfer Agents of the Company. In respect of shares held in electronic/ demat form, the

Members may please contact their respective depository participant.

17) Shareholders are requested to note that furnishing of Permanent Account Number (PAN)

is norv mandatory in the following cases: -

a) Legal Heirs'A.lominees' PAN Card for transmission of shares,

b) Surviving joint holders' PAN Cards for deletion of name of deceased Shareholder,

c) Joint Holders' PAN Cards fbr transposition of shares.
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l8) Members seeking any information or clarifications on the Annual Report are requested to

send in written queries to the Company at least one week before the meeting to enable the

Company to compile the information and provide replies at the meeting;

l9) E- voting:

In compliance with section 108 of the Companies Act,2013, Rule 20 of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement)

Regulation, 2015 and MCA Circulars, the Company is pleased to provide its Shareholders

with facility to exercise their right to vote on resolution proposed at the 35th Annual

General Meeting (ACM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through

e-Voting Services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities

Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the

authorized e-Voting's agency.

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the

members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be

able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also

attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday,24th September,2024 at 9:00 AM

and ends on Thursday 26'h, September, 2024 at 5:00 PM. During this period members of

the Compan1,, holding shares either in ph),sical form or in dernatcrializcd fonn, as on the

cut-off date 20tl' September, ')tJ'24, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. 'l'he remote e-
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voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a

resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it

subsequently.

20) The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be

counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies

Act,2013.

2l)Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Ac! 2013 read with Rule 20

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and

Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations

2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated

April 08, 2020, April 13,2020 and May 05,2020 the Company is providing facility of

remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the

EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as

the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting

system as well as venue voting on the date of the EGI\4/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

22)In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April

13, 2020, the Notice calling the EGIWAGM has been uploaded on the website of the

Company at www.microseindia.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites

of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com respectively and the

EGIWAGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the

Remote e-Voti ng facility) i.e. wrvrv.evotin g.nsd l.com.
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS
UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on 24th Septemberr 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on
26th September,2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 20th September,
2024, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the
cut-off date, being 20th Septemberr2024.

How do I vote electronicallv using NSDL e-Voting svstem?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of "Two Steps" which are

mentioned below:

Step l: Access to NSDL e-Votine svstem

A) Losin method for e-Votinq for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9.2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies. Individual shareholders holdins securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with DeLositories and Depositorv Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their dernat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given
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Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of
NSDL Yiz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a

Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services

home page click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under

"Login" which is available under 'IDeAS' section, this

will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and

Password. After successful authentication, you will be

able to see e-Voting services under Value added services.

Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL

Individual Shareholders

holding securities in demat

mode with NSDL.

Login Method
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for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
6'Register Online for IDeAS Portal" or click at
https://eservices.nsd l.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDi rectReg j s

p

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser
by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login"
which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section.
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile
App "NSDL Speede" facility by scanning the QR code

mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

&r$tll trklo,bile App is nvr:il*ble cn

* nppStore p Goosle Ploy
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Individual Shareholders

holding securities in demat

mode with CDSL

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility,
can login through their existing user id and password.

Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page

without any further authentication. The users to login
Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New
System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi

2.

J.
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Jmrrortant note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to
use Forqet [-Iser ID and Forget Passrvord option available at ahovementioneil rvehsile.

usemame & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able

to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where

the evoting is in progress as per the information provided

by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service

provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period. Additionally, there is also links provided to
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so

that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers'

website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com

and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then

click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page

by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from

a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home

page. The system will authenticate the user by sending

OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the

Demat Account. After successful authentication, user

will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting

is in progress and also able to directly access the system

of all e-Voting Service Providers.

2.

4.

Individual Shareholders

(holding securities in

demat mode) login through

their depository

participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat

account through your Depository Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be

able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your

vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Helndesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any
i.e. NSDL and CDSL.n

Losin tvne Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022
- 2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no. 1800 22 55 33
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Los-in to NSDL e-Votins website?

l. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which
is available under'Shareholder/Member' section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://e,services.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vole electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in
demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300**{'.

and Client ID is l2'<'<1'*** then your user

ID is IN300*** l2{<***{<*.

b) For Members who hold shares in
demat account with CDSL.

l6 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is

12******{<1.***d(** then yOUr USer ID iS

I 2r< * * * r< {< {.,f * * * * * *

c) For Members holding shares in
PhysicalForm.

EVEN Number followed by Folio
Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001'f 't:e

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) ll'you are already registered firr e-Voting, then you can ussr your cxisti
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Sterr 2: Cast your vote electronicallv on NSDL e-Voting svstem.

How to cast vour vote electronicallv on NSDL e-Voting svstem?
1. After successful login at Step l, you will be able to see allthe companies "EVEN" in

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

2. Select .'EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to
retrieve the 'initial password' which was communicated to you. Once you
retrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'initial password' and the
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your'initial password'?
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the

company, your 'initial password' is communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User ID' and
your'initial password'.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the " Initial password" or have
forgotten your password:
a) Click on "F'orgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
b) Phvsical User Reset Password?" (lf you are holding shares in physical mode)

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting
on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on o'Login" button.
After you click on the "Login" button, Home of e-Voting will

8.

9.
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Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modiff
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and

also "Confirm" when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully" will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option

on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your

vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders

l. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pramodshah36l@gmail.com

with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of
Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution /
Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an

event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User Detai " or "Physical
User Reset Password?" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the

password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

or send a request to Anubhav Saxena at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this notice:

l. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) by email to admin@gargindustries.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID +
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to admin@garsindustries.com. If you are an
Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer
to the login method explained at step I (A) i.e. Login mcthocl for e-Voting frrr
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for
procuring user id and passrvord for e-voting by providing above mcntioncd
documents"
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4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9.2020 on e-Voting facility provided bv
Listed Companies. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE

EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER: -

l. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGIWAGM is same as the instructions

mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGIWAGM through

VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote

e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through

e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the

EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the

facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned

for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH

VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGIWACM through VC/OAVM

through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps

mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you

can see link of "VC/OAVM link" placed under "Join Gencral mecting" menu

against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under

Join General Meeting menu. The link for VCIOAVM will be available in

Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please
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note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or

have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the

remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed

to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through

Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-

Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their

questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number,

email id, mobile number at (admin@gargindustries.com). The same will be replied by

the company suitably.

23) Mr. Pramod S. Shah - Partner of IWs. Pramod S. Shah & Associates, Practicing Company

Secretaries, has been appointed as the scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a

fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the

AGM, unblock and count the votes cast during the AGM and votes cast through remote e-

voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company

and shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report not later than 48 hours from the

conclusion of the AGM of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the

Chairperson of AGM or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the

same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.
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The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results declared

along with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the Company's website and on the

website of NSDL immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman of the

Company and communicated to the Stock Exchange.

F'OR MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

sd/-

Shyam Sunder Agrawal

Director

DIN: 00355837

Date: 30.08.2024

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure - I

(A) Disclosure regarding appointment or re-appointment of Directors as per

Regulation 36 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation,20l5: -

o Brief resume of Mrs. Nisha Garg.

o Nature of her expertise in specific functional areas:

Mrs. Nisha Garg specializes in management of Company resources.

o Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:

Mrs. Nisha Garg is spouse of Mr. Shyam Sunder Agrawal (Director)

Mrs. Nisha Garg is mother of Mr. Saurabh Garg (Director)

o Names of listed entities (Microse India Limited and other than Microse India

Limited) in which the person also holds the directorship and the membership of

committees of the board (along with listed entities from which the person has

resigned in the past three years):
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DETAILS OF'COMPANIES IN WHICH MRS. NISHA GARG IS A DIRECTOR

(AS AT 31103/2024)

NISHA GARG:

DETAILS OF COMPANIES IN WHICH DIRECTOR HOLDS THE
MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

(AS AT 3l/03/2024)

o Shareholding of directors: Ms. Nisha Garg is holding 142600 shares in the

Company

SR.
NO

CIN
NAME OF
COMPANY

CURRENT
DESIGNATION

DATE OF
APPOINTMENT
AT CURRENT

DESIGNATION

L.
L32201MH79
88PLC152404

Microse India Ltd Director 30/0e/20L6

SR. NO DETAILS OF
COMPANY

CURRENT
DESIGNATION

OX'THE
DIRECTOR

1 Microse India Limited NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE - MEMBER
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Form No. MGT 11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule l9(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 20141

CIN: L3220 lMHl 988PLC152404

Name of the Company: Microse India Limited

Registered office: 421 Maker Chamber, V, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021

Name of the Member (s):

Registered address:

E-mailld:

Folio No/Client ID:

DP ID:

Vwe being the member (s) of ... shares of the above named company, hereby

appoint

Signatu re
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as mylour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on mylour behalf at 36th

Annual general meeting of the Company, to be held on the day of Friday, September 27th,

2024 at 3:00 p.m. at 421 Maker Chamber, V, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021,

Maharashtra and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are

indicated below:

Resolution No.

l. To adopt the Financial Statement for the F .Y 2023-24 alongwith | *"r"nr" I,_]
Directors Report and Auditors Report thereon; I stamp

2. To re-appoint Ms. Nisha Garg (DIN: 06379024) as a Director of the Company who

is liable to retire by rotation;

Signed this...... day of...... ...2024

Signature of shareholder .........

Signature of Proxy holder(s)...

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and

deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the

commencement of the Meeting

Attendance Slip

Registered Folio / DP ID & Client ID

Name

Address of Shareholder

No. of Shares held
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VWe hereby record mylour presence at 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company at 421

Maker Chamber, V, Nariman Point, Mumbai -400021 on, Friday 27th September, 2024 at

3:00 PM"

Note: 1.

l. You are requested to sign and hand this over at the entrance.

2. If you are attending the meeting in person or by proxy please bring copy of notice and

annual report for reference at the meeting.
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icrose India Limited
Regd. Off.: 421, Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point - 400021

T el.: 022-2282,198 I Fax: 022-22835036

CIN No. L32201MH1988PLC152404 email:nierose@red.!.ttnaj!,g,glL

Directors' Report

To,

The Members,

Microse India Limited

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 36th Annual Report on the business and

operations of Microse India Limited along with Audited Financial Statements for the
Financial Year ended March 31,2024.

1" STATE OF THE COMPANY]S AFFAIRS AND KEY FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS:

During the year under review your Company has reported a Net Loss of Rs.38,20,252 l- as

compared to previous financial year wherein there was a Net Loss of Rs. 3,96,3311.

2. DIVIDEND:

In order to plough back the profits of the Company for further expansion, your Directors
thought it prudent not to recommend any dividend.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the General Reserve out of
amount available for appropriation.

Particulars For the Year
ended March
31,2024 (Rs.)

For the Year
ended March
31,2023 (Rs.)

Income 22,15,557 19,56,074

Expenditure 60,95,790 23,52,384

Profit /(Loss) before Tax (38,20,233) (3,96,310)

Deferred Tax/Current Tax t9 2t
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (38,20,252) (3,96,33r)



4. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
BI]TWEEN THE END OF TI{E FINANCIAI, YEAR OF THE CON,IPANY TO
WHTCH TI{E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT:

There has been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company

to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

5. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(SECTION 134(3Xm) OF THE COMPANIES ACT.2013:

With the kind of activities carried out by the Company, it has not spent any substantial

amount on conservation of energy and technology absorption stipulated under Section

l3a(3)(m) of the Companies Act,20l3.

6. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (SECTION 134(3Xm) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013:

The Company has not earned any Foreign Exchange in terms of actual inflows during the

year and has not spent any Foreign Exchange during the year in terms of actual outflows
as Company operates at domestic level.

7. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS:

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under

review.

8. REVISION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY/THE
REPORT OF THE BOARD:

The Financial Statement of the Company/Board Report has not been revised during the
Financial Year2023-2024 as per section 131 of Companies Act,20l3.

9. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The extract of Annual Return pursuant
with the Companies (Management and

to Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
Administration) Rules,2014 in the prescribed



Form MGT-9 is hereby attached with this Report in ANNEXURE I and is apart of this
Report as on 31't March, 2024.

10. DETAILS OF NEW SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES:

During the year under review, your Company has not undergone any Corporate

Arrangements, Restructuring, or changes and hence the Company has no new

subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies.

11. DETAILS OF THE COMPANY WHO CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARY/
JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, no Company has ceased to be subsidiary, associate and
joint venture Company of your Company.

12. THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

There were no significant orders passed by any of the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals,

which has an impact on the operations of the Company or affecting the Going Concern

status of the Company.

13. DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted ary deposits within the meaning of Section 73(1) of the

Companies Act,2013 and the Rules made there under.

14. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT:

The Management Discussion and Analysis report is provided in ANNEXURE II which
forms part of this report.

15. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Board of Directors are primarily responsible for establishing and maintaining internal

firtancial cotitrols lvitliin thu Cuttipuny. TLis is lurguly bused ul thu iltL'rlal uurrtrt-rls ovur



16.

financial reporting criteria that have been.established by the Company. These are based

on the size and the nature of the Company'sbperations and have been designed to provide

reasonable assurance on recording and providing reliable operational and financial
information, as per the applicable statutes and with regards to compliance norns.

The Company strictly follows the statute, laws, rules and regulations, which is regularly
reviewed by the statutory and intemal auditors. The adequate internal control framework
identifies and analyses risks and manages appropriate responses. It also ensures stringent

compliance across all the business units and departments. The aim behind this is to
safeguard the assets, prevent and detect fraud and errors, and also check completeness of
accounting records and timely preparations of financial statements.

DETAILS OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board met 10 times during the year. The intervening gap between the Meetings was

within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), Regulation, 2015. The details of which are

given below:

Sr. No. Date of
Meetings

Venue and time of the
meeting

Directors
present

Directors to
whom leave of
absence was

granted

1 2910512023 42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

5 Nil

2 2U0712023
42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

J l. Pawan
Gupta
Akshay
Goenka

2.

1J tU0812023 42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

5 Nil

4 2510812023 42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

5 Nil

5 031t012023 42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

J l. Pawan
Gupta



2. Akshay
Goenka

6 0211112023 421, Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Ivlumbai-
400021

5 Nil

7 041tU2023
42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

J 1. Pawan
Gupta
Akshay
Goenka

2.

8 1010112024

42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

a
J 1. Pawan

Gupta
Akshay
Goenka

2.

9 1210212024 42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

5 Nil

l0 r510312024
421,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point, Mumbai-
400021

J l. Pawan
Gupta

2. Akshay
Goenka

17. CHANGE IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

There is no Appointment/ Resignation/ Change in Designation of directors and Key
Managerial Personnel during the year under review.

* Whereas during the year under review 2023-2024 Pursuant to the provisions of Section

152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made thereunder, Mr. Shyam

Sunder Agrawal (DIN: 00355837), Director of the Company, was liable to be retired by
rotation and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment at the AGM, had been re-

appointed in 35th Annual General Meeting held on Monday,25th September,2)23.
* (Details of Directors retiring by rotation and re-appointed at 35th ensuing Annual
general meeting).

*{<* Whereas Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,2013 read

with the relevant rules made thereunder Mrs. Nisha Garg (DIN:06379024), Director of the

Company, is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment

at ensuing 36th Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday, 27th September,2\24.

*** (Details of Directors retiring by rotation / seeking re-appointment at 36th ensuing
Annual general mceting).



Sr.
No.

Name of the Independent
Director

Date of appointment
/ Re-appointment

Date of passing of
special resolution
(if any)

1 Mr. Pawan Gupta 29/0812023

2. Mr. Akshay Goenka 03/0912021

The brief resume of the Directors and other related information has been detailed in the

Notice convening the 36th AGM of the Company. Pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Secretarial

Standards -2 on General Meetings, a brief prolile is provided as an Annexure to the Notice

of the 36th Annual General Meeting.

18. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION I49 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2OI3:

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Directors in

accordance with Section A9(7) of the Companies Act,20l3, that he meets the criteria of
independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act,2013.

In view of the above provisions, your Company has following Independent Directors:

COMMITTEES OF BOARD

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three Directors with
two Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director and the Chairman

being the Independent Director. The said constitution is in accordance with the

provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee acts in
accordance with the terms of reference as approved and adopted by the Board. The

Nomination and Remuneration Policy is attached as per ANNEXURE-III

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as under:

Chairman:
Mr. Akshay Goenka (Independent Director)

Members:

19.



The meeting ofNomination & Remuneration Committee was held on 25th August,
2023 and all members were present.

ii. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

In accordance with the provisions of SectionlTT of the Companies Act, 2013 your
Company has constituted an Audit Committee comprising of minimum three

Directors consisting of two Non- Executive Independent Directors and one

Executive Director with the Chairman being Independent director. The Audit
Committee acts in accordance with the Terms of Reference specified by the Board
in writing.

Chairman:
Mr. Akshay Goenka (Independent Director)

MEMBERS:

Details of Meeting of Audit Committee:

Sr.
No.

Date of
Meetings

Venue and time of the
meeting

Directors
present

Directors to whom
Leave of absence was

granted
1 29105t2023 42l,Maker Chamber V,

Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021

J N.A.

2 rU08t2023 427,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021

a
J N.A.

a
J 2510812023 421,Maker Chamber V,

Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021

J N.A.

4 021tU2023 42l,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai- 400021

a
J N.A

5 12102t2024 421,Maker Chamber V,
Nariman Point,
Munrbai- 400021

a
J N.A



Tltefunctions of tlre Audit Committee are stated below;

(a) Overview of the company's financial reporting process and the Disclosure of
its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct

sufficient and credible;
(b) Review and monitoring of internal control system and compliance of audit

observations of the Auditors;
(c) Review of the hnancial statements before submission to the Board;

(d) Supervision of other financial and accounting matters as may be referred to
by the Board;

(e) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and intemal

auditors, and adequacy of intemal control systems;

(0 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the

nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area

ofconcern;
(g) Reviewing the company's financial and risk management policies;

(h) Overseeing vigil mechanism for adequate safeguards against victimization of
persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the

chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate and exceptional cases.

Accerrtance of Recommendations of the Audit Committee:

The Management acted upon the observations and suggestions of the Audit
Committee:

Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure

of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,

sufficient and credible;

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of auditors of the company;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and

auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before

submission to the board for approval;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and

effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company

with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

1.

2.

J.

4.

5.

6.

7.



8. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is
necessary;

9. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
10. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal

auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;
I l. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the

structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

12" Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area ofconcern;

13. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

iii. STAKEHOLDERRELATIONSHIPCOMMITTEE:

The Committee has the mandate to review, redress shareholders grievances
and to approve all the share transfers.

The Composition of the Committee is as under:
Chairman:
Mr. Akshay Goenka (Independent Director)

MEMBERS:

The function of Stakeholder Relationship Committee includes the following:
o Transfer /Transmission of shares;
o Issue of duplicate share certificates;
o Review of shares dematerialized and all other related matters;
o Monitors expeditious redressal ofinvestors' grievances;
o Non receipt of Annual Report and declared dividend; All other matters

related to shares.

The Meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on dated 25th
August 2023.



20.

iv. VIGIL MECHANISM:

Your Company believes in promoting a fair, transparent, ethical and professional

work environment. The Board of Directors of tlie Company has established a

Whistle Blower Policy & Vigil Mechanism in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act,2013 for reporting the genuine concerns or grievances or

concerns of actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of
conduct. The said Mechanism is established for directors and employees to report

their concems. The policy provides the procedure and other details required to be

known for the purpose of reporting such grievances or concerns. The Vigil
Mechanism Policy is attached as per ANNEXURE IV.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

As the company is not falling under the criteria mentioned for constitution of Corporate

Social Responsibility Committee and spending CSR expenditure under Section 135 of the

Companies Act,2013, the same is not applicable to the Company.

21. OUALIFICATION GIVEN BY THE AUDITORS:

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the

Auditors of the Company in their report.

22. LOANS" GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY TFIE COMPANY:

The company has not given any loan or guarantee or provided security in connection with
a loan to any other body corporate during the year. However, the Company has made

investments in other Companies by acquisition of shares.

23. CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The details of transactions/contracts/arangements referred to in Section 188(1) of
Companies Act,2013 entered by the Company with related party(ies) as defined under

the provisions of Section 2(76) of the Companies Ac| 2073, during the financial year

under review, are furnished in Form AOC-2 and is attached as ANNEXURE V and forms

part of this Report.



24. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:

The Company have Risk Management framework to inform the Audit Committee and

Board members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures and periodical
review to ensure that Executive Management controls risk by means of properly designed
framework.

The Company's framework of risk management process provides clear basis for informed
decision making at all levels of the organization on an ongoing basis, having duly
evaluated likely risk and their mitigation plans being controllable and within risk appetite.
There are no elements of risk, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the

existence of the Company.

25. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD PERFORMANCE:

The Company has in place a policy on performance evaluation of Independent Directors,
Board, Committees and individual Directors. The Board of Directors evaluates its own
performance in terms of operations of the Company, Financial Results etc. The
performance of Committee(s) is evaluated by the Board based on effectiveness of
Committee, its functioning and decisions etc.

The Board also reviews the performance of individual Director(s) based on the

contribution of the individual Director to the Board/ Committee Meetings, participation
in discussions, inputs given in the meeting.

As required under section 178(2) of the Companies Act,2013 and under Schedule IV to
the Companies Act, 2013 on Code of conduct for Independent Directors, a comprehensive
exercise for evaluation of the performances of every individual Director, of the Board as

a whole and its Committees has been carried by your company during the year under
review as per the evaluation criteria approved by the Board and based on guidelines given
in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013.

For the purpose of carrying out performance evaluation exercise, four types of Evaluation
forms were devised in which the evaluating authority has allotted to the individual
Director, the Board as a whole, its Committees and appropriate rating as Excellent, Very
Good, Good or Satisfactory depending upon the performance.

Such evaluation exercise has been carried out on:

i) Independent Directors by the Board.



ii)

iii)

iu)

Non-Independent Directors by all the Independent Directors in separate meeting

held for the purpose.

the Board as a whole and its Committees by all the Independent Directors in
separate meeting held for the purpose on2510812023.

the Chairperson of your Company by the Independent Directors in separate

meeting held on 2510812023 after considering the views of the ExecutiveA.{on-

Executive Directors.

Individual Directors by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Board itself.
v)
vi)

Having regard to the industry, size and nature of business your company is engaged in,

the evaluation methodology adopted is, in the opinion of the Board, sufficient, appropriate

and is found to be serving the purpose.

26. AUDITORS:

M/S. TODARWAL & TODARWAL LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, having firm
registration no. 111009W were appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company via
Ordinary Resolution passed in the 35th Annual General Meeting held on September 25,

2023, to hold office from the conclusion of 35th Annual General Meeting held for the year

ended 31st March,2023 until the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting to be held

for the year ended 31st March,2028 i.e for the period of Five years, on a remuneration to

be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

EOUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

Your Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting Rights.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under section

197(12) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 5(1) & 5(2) of the Companies

(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided

in ANNEXURE VI which forms part of this report.

27"

28.



29. EMPLOYEES' STOCK OPTION PLAN:

Your Company has not issued any Employee Stock Option Plan to their employees.

30. SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:

Your Company has not issued any number of Sweat Equity Shares according to Section
54 of the Companies Act,20I3.

3I. LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES:

Your company's equity shares are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE).

The company has paid the listing fees to the stock exchanges for the financial year 2023-
24.

32. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

The Secretarial Audit Report as submitted by M/s. Akash Jain, Practising Company

Secretaries who were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company by the Board
is set out in the ANNEXURE VII to this report. There are no qualifications, reservations

or adverse remarks or any disclaimer that have been made by the Secretarial Auditor.

33. COST AUDIT:
The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (l) of section 148 of the Companies Act,2013, is not applicable to the Company.

34. CORPORATE GOYERNANCE:

The Corporate Governance provision of SEBI (LODR) Regulation ,2015 is not applicable

to the Company and the same is quarterly intimated to BSE.

35. DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITYSTATEMENT:

Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act,2013 and to the best of
their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained



/received from the operating management, your Directors make the following statement

and confirm that-

(a) in the preparation ofthe annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit

and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company

and such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively

(fl the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws andwith aid down internal hnancial controls to be followed by the

company and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

36. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS
UNDER SECTION 143 (12) OF COMPANIES ACT.2013:

There are no frauds reported by the Auditor which are required to be disclosed under
Section 143 (12) of Companies Act, 2013.

37. SEXUAL HARASSMENT:

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace

for every individual through various interventions and practices. The Company always

endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and

harassment including sexual harassment and Complaints Committee has been set up

which is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment. During the



year ended March 3I, 2024, no complaints have been received pertaining to sexual

harassment.

38. STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD
TO INTEGRITY. EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE
PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING
THE YEAR.

During the year under review no independent directors were appointed. The Board
is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of company possess integrity,
expertise and experience as required in the Companies Act,2013 and has required
skill set for efficient functioning of the company.

39. DETAILS OF INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE:

During the year under review, No application has been made neither is any
application pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code.

40. DETAILS REGARDING VALUATION REPORT:

During the year under review, your Company has not entered any One-Time
Settlement with Bank's or Financial Institutions and therefore, no details of
Valuation in this regard is available.

41. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors appreciate and acknowledge the unstinted commitment and valuable
contribution made by the employees of the Company at all levels. The Directors also take
this as an opportunity to express their gratitude to all the Stakeholders of the Company
viz. customers, investors, banks, regulators for their continued support during the year

under review.
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Date: 2810812024
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Director
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ANNEXURE I
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended March 31,2024

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule l2(l) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 20141

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN:- L3220 lMHl 98 8PLC 1 52404

ii) Registration Date - 3U0511988

i ii) Name of the Company - MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

iu)

Category / Sub-Category of the

Company

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

INDIAN NON-GOVERNMENT COM PANY

v)

Address of the Registered office

and contact details

421 MAKER CHAMBER V, NARIMAN POINT,

MUMBAI- 4OOO2I

vi) Whether Listed YES

vii) Name, Address and Contact

details of Registrar and Transfer

Agent, if any

M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited

Office No 56-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacte Business Park, Next to

Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri

(East),Mumbai,Maharashtra,400093

Tel No: 022 4043 0200,

Email : info@bigshareonline.com



il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing l0o/o or more of the total tumover of the company shall

be stated:-

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES.

SI. No. Yame and Description of

inain products / services

\IC Code of the

Product/ service

'/o to total turnover

rfthe Company

I Sales 64990 72.50%

2
)ther professional, scientifi c

rnd technical activities n.e.c. 74909 26.37%

Sr.

No

Name and address

of the Company

CIN/GL

N

Holding/ Subsidiary/

Associate

7o ofshares

held

Applicable

Section

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

IV

i.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital break-up as percentage of total equity):

Category-wise shareholding:

Category No. Of shares held at the beginning

ofthe year

No. Of shares held at the end of the

year

Demat Physical Total % Demat Physical Total % oh Change in

shareholding

during the

yeat

A. Promoter

(1) Indian



a.lndividual

/HUF

670000 I 19700 789700 26.30 670000 119100 789100 26.30 0

b. CentralGovt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c. State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d. Bodies

corporate

0 s3 1300 s3 I 300 17.69 0 53 r 300 53 I 300 17.69 0

e. Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f. Any other

(Specifu)

(i) Directors

relative

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(ii) Group

Companies

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total A(1) 670000 65 1000 1321000 43.99 670000 65 1 000 1321000 43.99 0

(2) Foreign

a. NRI

Individuals

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b. Other

Individuals

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c. Bodies

Corporate

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d. Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e. Any Other... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total A (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Share

holding of

promoters A=A

(l) +A (2)

670000 65 1000 1321000 43.99 670000 65 1000 1321000 43.99 0



B. Public

Sha reh old ing

(1) Institutions

a. Mutual Fund /

UTI

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b. Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c. Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d" State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e. Venture Cap

fund

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f. Insurance

Companies

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ob' FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

h. Foreign

Venture Cap

Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i. Otlrers

(Specify)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total B (l) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2. Non-

Institutions

a) Bodies

Corporate

i) Indian 0 1616200 t616200 s3.82 0 1616200 1616200 53.82 0

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual

shareholders

holding nominal

share capital up

to Rs. I lakh

0 65800 65800 2.19 0 65800 65800 2.19 0



ii) Individual

sharelrolders

holding nominal

share capital in

excess ofRs I

lakh

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Others

(Specifl,)

Sub-Total

(B)(2):

0 l 682000 r682000 56.0 t 0 l 682000 1682000 56.01 0

Total Public

Share holding

(B)= (B)(l)

+(BX2)

0 I 682000 1682000 56.01 0 I 682000 1682000 56.01 0

C. Shares held

by Custodian

for GDRS &

ADRs

Grand Total

(A+B+C)

670000 2333000 3003000 100.0 670000 2333000 3003000 100.0 0

Note: 16,40,600 Equity Shares are partly paid up Shares.

ii. Shareholding of Promoters:

Shareholder

Name

Shareholding at beginning of the

year

Shareholding at end ofthe

year

o//o

Change

in

sharehol

ding

during

the year

No. of

shares

o/o oftotal

shares of

the Co.

"/" of

shares

pleclged /

encumbe

red to

No. of

shares

Yo of

total

shares

of the

"/" of

shares

pledged /

encumtle

red to



total

shares

Co. total

shares

City Land & Hsg.

LLP

25000 0.8325 0 25000 0.832s 0 0

Bay Commercial

LLP

35400 1 .1 788 0 35400 r .1 788 0 0

Yen Trading LLP 50000 1.6650 0 50000 r.6650 0 0

Honesty Home

Const. Co. LLP

ss000 1 .83 15 0 55000 I .83 l5 0 0

Paradise Trading

LLP.

7s000 2.491s 0 75000 2.4975 0 0

Berg Trading

Private Ltd.

7s000 2.4975 0 75000 2.4975 0 0

Krishna Org.&

Builders Private

Ltd.

1 00000 3.3300 0 100000 3.3300 0 0

Good Value

Realtors LLP

I 15900 3.8595 0 I 1 5900 3.8595 0 0

Shyam Sunder

Agrawal

l 19700 3.9860 0 l 19700 3.9860 0 0

Saurabh Garg l 39000 4.6287 0 139000 4.6287 0 0

Nisha Carg 142600 4.7486 0 t42600 4.7486 0 0



Sangeeta Garg 143300 4.7719 0 1 433 00 4.7719 0 0

Atirek Garg 24s100 8.151 8 0 245100 8. r 618 0 0

Total 1321000 43.99 0 1321000 43.99 0 0

iii. Changes in promoters shareholding:

Sr.
No.

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning ofthe year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of
shares

o/o of total
shares of
the
company

No. of shares Yo oftotal
shares ofthe
company

At the beginning of
the year

1321000 43.99 1321000 43.99

Date wise Increase / Decrease

in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying
the

reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity
etc):

No change

At the End of the year 1321000 43.99 1321000 43.99



iv. Shareholdins Pattern of ton ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs):

Sl. No. Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the end of

the year

Cum ulative Shareholding

during the year

For Each ofthe Top 10

Shareholders

No. of

shares

o/o oftotal shares

of the company

No. of

shares

o/o oftotal shares

of the company

At the beginning of the year

1 Candock Invst & Trd. Private.

Lrd

14s000 4.83 r 45000 4.83

2 Candle Trade & Inv. Private Ltd 140000 4.66 285000 9.49

3 Mellon Invst. Private Ltd 140000 4.66 42s000 14.15

4 Behoof Investments & Trd.

Private Ltd

I 35000 4.50 s60000 18.65

5 Apricot Leasing & Fin. Private

Ltd

I 10000 3.66 670000 22.31

6 Trim Leasing & Fin. Private Ltd I 05000 3.s0 715000 25.81

7 Smilex Trade & Invest. Private

Ltd.

I 05000 3.s0 880000 29.31

8 Onflow Investment Private Ltd. l 0s000 3.50 985000 32.8t

9 Space Leasing Ltd., r01200 ).) I I 086200 36.1 8

l0 Kedgy Investment Private Ltd 100000 J.JJ l l 86200 39.51

Date wise increase/decrease in

Promoters Share holding during

the year specifying the reasons

for increase/decrease (e. g.

al lotment/ transfer/ bonus/sweat

equity etc)

No Change

At the end of the year

1 Candock Invst & Trd. Private.

Ltd

145000 4.83 145000 4.83

2 Candle Trade & Inv. Private Ltd 140000 4.66 28s000 9.49



J Mellon Invst. Private Ltd 140000 4"66 425000 14.15

4 Behoof Investrrents & Trd.

Private Ltd

I 35000 4.50 560000 r 8.65

5 Apricot Leasing & Fin. Private

Lrd

l 10000 3.66 670000 22.31

6 Trim Leasing & Fin. Private Ltd I 0s000 3.s0 775000 25.81

7 Smilex Trade & Invest. Private

Ltd.

1 05000 3"50 880000 29.31

8 Onflow Investment Private Ltd. 1 05000 3"s0 985000 32.81

9 Space Leasing Ltd., 101200 5-J I l 086200 36.18

10 Kedgy Investment Private Ltd 100000 J.JJ l 1 86200 39.s 1

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel.

Name Of

Director

Shareholding at Beginning of The

Year

Shareholding at the End of The Year

No. of Shares % of Total

Shares of the Co.

No. of Shares Yo of Total

Shares of the Co.

Nisha Garg 142,600 4.74 142,600 4.74

Saurabh Garg 139,000 4.62 139,000 4.62

Shyam Sunder Agrawal 119,700 3.98 119,700 3.98



V. INDEBTNESS

V.INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year

46.41,484 46,41,484

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 46.41.484 46,41,484
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Addition 24,72,770 24,72,770

Reduction 23,89,155 23,89,155

Net Chanse

Indebteclness at the end
of the financial year

Principal Amount 47.2s.099 47,25,099

) Interest due but not paid

i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 47.25.099 47 "25"099



VI. RBMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Rctttuncratiort to Nlanaging Dircctor, Wlrolc-tirne Directors and/or lVlanager:

Particulars of Remuneration
Name of MDAilTD/
Manager

Total
Amount

Gross salarv

(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1) ofthe

lncome-tax Act, l96l NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(b) Value of perquisites u/s l7(2)
Income-tax Act, l96l NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under

section I 7(3) Income-tax Act, l96l NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

- as%o ofprofit NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

- others, speciff.. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Others, please specifr NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (A) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Ceiling as per the Act



Remuneration to other Directors:

Sr.

no
Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors Total
Amount

l. Independent Directors
. Fee for attending board /
committee meetings
. Commission
. Others, please speciff

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (l) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

2. Other Non-Executive
Directors
. Fee for attending board /
committee meetings
. Commission
. Others, please specify

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total(B)=(l+2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total Managerial

Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Overall Ceiling as per the

Act NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL



C. REMLINERATION TO KEY MANACERIAL PERSONNEL OTIIER THAN
MD/MANAGEPJWTI)

sl.

no.

Particulars of

Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO Company
Secretary

CFO Total

Vlanojkumar

lhaudhari
Agrima
Shah

{mit Mishra

I 3ross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section l7(l) of

the Income-tax Act, 1961

59297s t27484 461516 11,81,97 5

(b) Value of perquisites u/s

l7(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary

under section 17(3\ Income-

Tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option

Sweat Equity

4. Commission

- as%o of profit

- others, specify..

5. Others, please specify

Total t9291s 127484 161516 11,91 ,97 5



VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMBNT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

FOR MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

sd/- sd/-

Shyam Sunder Agrawal

Director

DIN: 00355837

Address: 204,Tahnee Heights, 66 Nepeansea

Road, Mumbai, Malabar Hill Mumbai -
400006, Maharashtra

Date:2810812024

Place: Mumbai

Saurabh Garg

Director

DIN: 00376890

Address: 204,T ahnee Heights,66 Nepeansea

Road, Mumbai, Malabar Hill Mumbai -
400006, Maharashtra

Type Section of
Companies
Act

Brief
description

Details of penalty /
punishment /
compounding fee

imposed

Authority [RD
AICLT / Courtl

Appeals made,
if any

A" Company NONE,

Penalty

Punishment
Compoundins
B. Directors NONE
Penalty
Punishment
Compoundins
C. Other Officers in
default

NONE

Penalty
Punishment
Compounding



ANNEXURE II

N{A NA G I] ITIINIT DIS CT IS SION A N]D A NA I,\ZSI S R I]POR T

Industry Structure and Developments:

Global economic overview

The global economy has held itself in good stead, amidst a volatile environment. The

economic recovery process remained resilient, and inflationary pressures eased from record

high levels in FY 2023-24. The Intemational Monetary Fund (IMF) predicted the global

economy to expand by 3.2% in 2024, after a similar growth in 2023. This is remarkable,

considering the severe economic shocks faced by advanced and emerging economies over the

last 36 months. These ranged from breakdown in global supply chains, food and energy

crisis, stresses in cost of living and a severe monetary tightening by major central banks.

Despite these challenges, economic activity did not slip into recession and is poised to

expand at a steady rate over the next 5 years.

With inflationary pressures easing, central banks are expected to start easing policy stance,

lowering borrowing costs across markets. This will potentially lead to further easing in

financial conditions and redirect capital flows to Emerging Markets. However, the recovery

will be contingent upon geopolitical factors, which remain highly volatile.

According to the IMF's World Economic Outlook (April 2024), inflation is falling faster than

expected in most regions; and it has forecasted global headline inflation to fall to 5.9Yo in

2024 and further to 4.5oh in 2025, with the possibility of the 2025 forccast being further

revised downwards.

Indian econom ic overview

The Indian economy was estimated to grow 7.8 percent in the 2023-24 fiscal againstT.2per

cent in 2022-23 mainly on account of the improved performance in the mining and quarrying,

manufacturing and certain segments of the services sector. India retained its position as the

fifth largest economy. The Indian rupee displayed relative resilience compared to the

previous year; the rupee opened atH82.66 against the US dollar



on the first trading day of 2023 and on 27 December was H83.35 versus the greenback, a

depreciation of 0.8%.

In FY 2023-24, the CPI inflation averaged 5.4 percent with rural inflation exceeding urban

inflation. Lower production and erratic weather led to a spike in food inflation. In contrast,

core inflation averaged at 4.5percent, a sharp decline from 6.2 percent in FY 23.

The softening of global commodity prices led to a moderation in core inflation.

The nation's foreign exchange reserves achieved a historic milestone, reaching $645.6

billion. The credit quality of Indian companies remained strong between October 2023 and

March 2024 following deleveraged Balance Sheets, sustained domestic demand and

govemment-led capital expenditure. Rating upgrades continued to surpass rating downgrades

inH2FY24. UPI transactions in India posted a record 56 per cent rise in volume and a 43 per

cent rise in value inFY24.

Outlook

While the economy broadly continues to be somewhat bumpy, it is reasonable to assume that

some sectors will continue to show positive growth, while others will benefit from their

inherently recession-proof character. We foresee the healthcare sector to be in the forefront of

stable expansion, given the vulnerabilities in state public health infrastructure, post-pandemic

social consciousness on physical and mental conditions, wellness becoming a new hygiene

requirement in people's lives, and the ageing pensioner population who will require medical/

financial support. Thus, even insurance will probably boom in India; one, we have a fairly

low penetration rate, secondly, there is greater awareness of contingencies and unforeseen

black swan moments.

Segm ent-wise or product-wise perform ance:

As compared to the previous reporting period, there is decrease in the income of the company

in the current reporting period.

The Company, rvith superior methodologics and improved processi and sl,stcnrs, rvill focus on

positioning the revenues and lead towards high growth path in future.



The Company is only operating in one segment.

Outlook. Risks and Concerns:

India withstood global headwinds in 2023 and is likely to remain the world's fastest-growing

major economy on the back of growing demand, moderate inflation, stable interest rates and

robust foreign exchange reserves. The Indian economy is anticipated to surpass USD 4

trillion in2024-25.

Internal control systems and their adequacy:

Your Company ensures that appropriate risk management limits, control mechanisms and

mitigation strategies are in place through its efficient and effective Internal Control System

and the same completely corresponds to its size, scale and complexity of operations. The

Company strives to put several checks and balances in place to ensure that confidentiality is

maintained. Effective procedures and mechanisms are rolled out by a full-fledge Internal

Audit System to ensure that the interest of the Company is safeguarded at all times. In

addition to this, the Risk Assessment policy of the organization is reviewed on a quarterly

basis by the Audit Committee / Board of Directors of your Company.

Discussion on financial performance with resrlect to operational performance:

Total income achieved during the year under review is Rs. 22,75,557 as against Rs. 19,56,074

in the previous year. After all Expenses, Depreciation and Taxation, the net loss of the

Company is Rs. 38,20,252 as against the net loss Rs. 3,96,331 in the previous year.

Details of change in networth as compared to the immediately previous financial vear
alons with detailed exnlanation thereto:

The net worth achieved during the year under review is Rs. 1,11,18,603 as against Rs.

1,49,38,853 in the previous year.

Your Company endeavours to perform and attcmpt to dcliver the best at alI times. However,

the statements made in this report describing the Company's objectives, expectations or



predictions shall be read in conjunction with the government policies as issued and amended

from time to time, the micro as well as macroeconomic scenario prevailing at that time,

global dcveloprnents and such other incidental factors that may extend beyond the control of

the Company and Management.

Keeping this in view, the actual results may materially vary from those expressed in the

statement.

Material develorrments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front. including
number of people emDloved:

The Company continuously strives to attract and retain the best talent from the local markets,

clearly define their roles and responsibilities, create an inspiring and rewarding work

environment, imparting training to them and creating development opportunities for

increasing employee knowledge and efficiency to make them future ready and create career

opportunities within.

The Company is committed in ensuring that the work environment at all its locations is

conducive to fair, safe and harmonious relations between employees. Company strongly

believes in maintaining the dignity of all its employees, irrespective of their gender or

seniority. Discrimination and harassment of any type are strictly prohibited.



ANNEXURE - III

Nom ination and Remuneration Policv

1. Purpose of the Policy:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("Committee") of the Company and this

Policy shall be in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Policv is framed with the obiective(s):

1. To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate the working potential of all the Directors and Key
managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company;

To ascertain that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets

appropriate performance benchmarks;

To ensure that the remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of
the Company involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and

long{erm performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its
goals;

4. To lay down criteria with regard to identifying persons who are qualified to become

Directors (Executive and Non-executive) and persons who may be appointed in Key
Managerial positions and to determine their remuneration;

To determine remuneration based on the Company's size and financial position and

trends and practices on remuneration prevailing in peer companies, in the industry;

To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial

Personnel and to provide for reward(s) linked directly to their effort, performance,

dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations; and

To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of directors and Key Managerial

Personnel and evaluation of their performance.

2. Definitions:

2.1 Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time
to time.

2.2Board means Board of Directors of the Company.

2.

5.

7.



2"3 I)irectors mean Directors of the Company

2"4 Policv or this Policv means, "Nomination and Remuneration Policy."

2.5 Key Managerial Personnel means

2.5.1. Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

2.5.2. Whole-time director;

2.5.3. Chief Financial Officer;
2.5.4. Company Secretary

2.5.5. Such other officer as may be prescribed.

3. ROLE OF COMMITTEE

3.1. Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Committee shall:

3.1.1 Identifu persons who are qualified to become Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) who may be appointed in accordance with the criteria laid down.

3.1.2 Recommend to the Board appointment and removalof Directors and KMP and shall
carry out evaluation of every director's performance.

3.1.3 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director.

3.1.4 Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors
and Key Managerial personnel and other employees.

3.1.5 To consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and

also bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel and such

other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate.

3.1.6 Make independent/ discreet references, where necessary, well in time to verify the
accuracy of the information fumished by the applicant.

3.2. Policv for aprrointment and removal of Director and Kev Manngerial Personnel
(KN,IP)

3.2.1. Anpointment criteria an d q u al ifi cations



a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and

experience of the person for appointment as Director and Key Managerial Personnel

and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the

position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to
decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are

sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-

time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the

person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval ofshareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory

statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for
extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

3.2.2. Criteria for Remuneration to Directors. Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management:

(a) Performance: The Committee shall while determining remuneration ensures that the

performance of the Director and Key Managerial Personnel and their commitment and

efficiency is constructive and beneficial in generating commercial for the Company.

(b) Responsibilities and Accountabilify: The roles and responsibilities towards the

organisation and the position of the Director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be

formerly evaluated to fix the remuneration.

(c) Transparency: The process of remuneration management shall be transparent,

conducted in good faith and in accordance with appropriate levels of confidentiality.

(d) Flexibility: The Remuneration payable shall be flexible to meet both the needs of
individuals and those of the Company while complying with relevant tax and other

legislation.

(e) Affordability and Sustainability: The remuneration payable is affordable and on a

sustainable basis.

3.2.3. Rcmuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

The Committee shall ensure that the Remuneration payable to Directors and Key
Managcrial Pcrsonncl shall bc paid aftcr complying rvith thc provisions of Scction

197 and Schedule V and such other applicable provisions including rules of the

Companies Act,2013.



3.2.4. Term / Tenure

Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on

the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a
special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's

report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but

such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years

of ceasing to be an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall

not, during the aforesaid period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with
the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

3.2.5. Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director and KMP
at regular interval (yearly).

3.2.6. Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other

applicable Act, rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to

the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director and Key

Managerial Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules

and regulations.

3.2.7. Retirement

The Director and Key Managerial Personnel shall retire as per the applicable

provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have

the discretion to retain the Director and Key Managerial Personnel in the same

position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the

benefit of the Company.

3.3 Policy relating to the Remuncration for the Whole-time Director.

3.3.1. General

a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Wholetime Director, and

Key Managerial Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to



b)

the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be

subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company, wherever
required.

In determining the remuneration of Whole-time Director and Key Managerial
Personnel the Committee should consider among others:

o Conducting benchmarking with companies of similar type on the remuneration
package;

o The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,

retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

o Clear linkage of remuneration and appropriate performance benchmarking; and

o Remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short

and long-term performance objectives to the working of the Company and its
goals"

Increments including bonuses, incentive and other rewards to the existing
remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the

Board which should be approved by the Shareholders of the Company and/or Central

Government, wherever requ ired.

3.3.2. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director

The Non-Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of
sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof.

Membership

Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board with a minimum of three

Non-Executive Directors out of which not less than one-half shall be Independent

Director.

The Chairman of the Committee shall be elected from members amongst themselves

who shall be an Independent Director. In the absence of the Committee's Chairman,

the remaining members present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.

Minimum two (2) members or one-third of the members whichever is greater

including atleast one Independent Director shall constitute a quorum for the

Committee meeting.

Only members of the Committee have the right to attend and vote at the Committee
meetings and any other person required to attend the meeting will have no right to
vote.

c)

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4



4.5 The Chairperson of the Committee or, in his absence, any other member of the

Comnrittee authorised by hirn in this behalf shall attend the general meetings of the

Company.

5. Frequency of the meetings

The Committee shall meet at such times so as to enable it to carry out its powers,

functions, roles & responsibilities.

6. Committee Members' Interests

6.1 Member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being

evaluated.

6.2 The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present

at the meetings of the Committee.

7. Nomination Duties
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

7:1, Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

7.2 Setting a formaland transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for
appointment to the Board;

7.3 Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the

context of the Company's performance from business and compliance perspective;

7.4 Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and

7.5 Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

8. Minutes of Committee Meeting

Proceedings of all meetings must be recorded in writing and in form of minutes and

signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the Chairman of the next succeeding

meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Board

and Committee meeting.



ANNEXURE IV

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE RI-OWER POLICY

PREFACE/ INTRODUCTION:

committed to conducting its business in accordance with applicable laws, rules and

regulations and the highest standards of business ethics and to full and accurate

disclosures. The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair
and transparent manner by adopting highest standards of professionalism, honesty,

integrity and ethical behaviour.

investigate and resolve complaints, take appropriate action to safeguard the interests of
the Company and to ensure that any person making a complaint (referred to as "a
whistleblower") is protected, while at the same time actively discouraging frivolous and

insubstantial complaints. Company shall oversee the vigil mechanism through Audit
committee and if any of the members of the committee have a conflict of interest in a
given case, they should recues themselves and the others on the committee would deal

with the matter on hand.

SCOPE OF VIGIL MECHANISM:

To act as an additional internal element of the Company's compliance and integrity
policies.

Not a substitute for other formal internal arrangements and procedures.

Seeks to ensure that anyone who is aware (director or employee of the company) of a
breach of Company policies and procedures, suspected or actual frauds and

embezzlement, illegal, unethical behaviour or violation of company's code of conduct or
ethics etc., feels free to bring this to the attention of appropriate personnel in the

Company, without fear of victimization, harassment or retaliation.

Definitions:

a. "Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules; as amended from
time to time;

b. "Audit Committee" means the Audit Committee of Directors constituted by the

Board of Directors in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 arrd

read with Regulation l8 of the Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Listing



Obligations And Disclosurerequirements) Regulations, 2015 and charged with
oversight of financial reporting and disclosure.

c. "Board" or "Board of Directorso' in relation to this policy means the collective body

of the Directors of the Company.

d. "Code'o means The Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel

adopted by the Company.

e. "Disciplinary Action" means any action that can be taken on the completion of /
during the investigation proceedings including but not limiting to a warning,

imposition of fine, suspension from official duties or any such action as is deemed to

be fit considering the gravity of the matter.

f. "Employee" means all the present employees and Whole-time Directors of the

Company (whether working in India or abroad).

g. "Whistleblower" means an Employee or Director making a protected disclosure

under this Policy.

h. "Protected disclosure" means any communication made in good faith that discloses

or demonstrates evidence of any fraud or unethical activity within the Company and

should be factual and not speculative.

i. "Subject" means a person or group of persons against or in relation to whom a

Protected Disclosure is made or evidence gathered during the course of an

investigation.

j. "Vigilance and Ethics Officer" means an officer appointed to receive protected

disclosures from Whistle Blower, maintaining records thereof, placing the same

before the Audit Committee for its disposal and informing the Whistle Blower the

result thereof.

ScoDe:

o To act as an additional internal element of the Company's compliance and integrity

policies.

o Not a substitute for other formal internal arrangements and procedures.

. Seeks to ensure that anyone who is aware (director or employee of the company) of a
breach of Company policies and procedures, suspected or actual frauds and

embezzlement, illegal, unethical behaviour or violation of company's code of conduct

or ethics etc., feels free to bring this to the attention of appropriate personnel in the

Company, without fear of victimization, harassment or retaliation.



Elieibility:

All Emplol'ees and directors of the Company are eligible to make Protected Disclosures
under the Policy in relation to matters concerning to the Company.

Disclosure:

The information on suspected wrongful conduct should be of such information which is
intended to cover serious concems that could have large impact on the Company such as

actions that:

. Abuse of Authority;

. Breach of contract;

' Negligence causing substantial and specific danger to public health and safety;
. Manipulation of company data/records;
. Financial irregularities, including fraud, or suspected fraud;
. Criminaloffence;
. Pilferation of confidential/propriety information;
. Deliberate violation of law/regulation;
. Wastage/misappropriation of company funds/assets;
. Breach of employee Code of Conduct or Rules;
. Any other unethical, biased, favoured, imprudent event; and

' Amount to serious improper conduct, including any kind of harassment (sexual or
otherwise).

The above list is only illustrative and should not be considered as exhaustive.

Policy should not be used in place of the Company grievance procedures or be a route for
raising malicious or unfounded allegations against colleagues. Protected Disclosure will be
appropriately dealt with by the Ethics Counsellor or the Chairman of the Audit Committee, as

the case may be.

Investigation:

o Whistle Blower can make Protected Disclosure to Vigilance and Ethics Officer, as

soon as possible after becoming aware of the suspected or actual frauds and
embezzlement, illegal, unethical behaviour or violation of company's code of conduct
or ethics etc. Direct access will be provided to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee or the director nominated to play the role of Audit Committee, as the case

may be in appropriate or exceptional cases.

o Whistle Blower must put his/her narne to allegations. Concerns expressed

anonymously WILL NOT BE investigated.



If initial enquiries by the Vigilance and Ethics Officer indicate that the concern has no

basis, or it is not a matter to be investigation pursued under this Policy, it may be

disrnissed at this stage and the basis for such dismiss will be recorded and such

decision will be documented.

Where initial enquiries indicate that further investigation is necessary, this will be

carried through either by Vigilance and Ethics Officer alone, or along with any other

person authorised by the Chairman of Audit Committee.

Chairman of the Audit Committee/ Vigilance and Ethics Officer, will decide the

process of investigation as deemed appropriate where protected disclosures are

received.

The contact details of the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company are as

under:

Mr. Akshay Goenka

Chairman- Audit Committee

Address: 421Maker Chamber V, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021, Maharashtra

The identity of a Subject will be kept confidential to the extent possible given the

legitimate needs of law and the investigation.

Subjects have a right to be informed of the outcome of the investigation. If allegations

are not sustained, the Subject should be consulted as to whether public disclosure of
the investigation results would be in the best interest of the Subject and the Company.

The investigation shall be completed normally within 90 days of the receipt of the

Protected Disclosure and is extendable by such period as the Vigilance and Ethics

Officer /Chairman of the Audit Committee deems fit.

Protection for wh istleblorver:

o No unfair treatment will be meted out to a Whistle blower by virtue of hislher having

reported a Protected Disclosure under this Policy. The Company, as a policy,

condemns any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair
employment practice being adopted against Whistleblowers. Complete protection

will, therefore, be given to Whistleblowers against any unfair practice like retaliation,

threat or intimidation of termination/suspension of service, disciplinary action,

transfer, demotion, refusal of promotion, or the like including any direct or indirect

use of authority to obstruct the Whistle blower's right to continue to perform hisftrer

dLrties/firrrctions inclLrding mal<ing firrther Protected Disclosure. The Company will
take steps to minimize difficulties, which the Whistle blower may experience as a

result of making the Protected Disclosure. Thus, if the Whistleblower is required to



give evidence in criminal or disciplinary proceedings, the Company will arrange for
the Whistle blower to receive advice about the procedure, etc.

A Whistleblower may report any violation of the above clause to the Chairman of the

Audit Committee or Vigilance and Ethics Officer, who shall investigate into the same

and recommend suitable action to the management.

The identity of the Whistle blower shall be kept confidentialto the extent possible and

permitted under law. Whistleblowers are cautioned that their identity may become

known for reasons outside the control of the Vigilance and Ethics Officer / Chairman

of the Audit Committee (e.g. during investigations carried out by Investigators).

. Any other Employee or Director assisting in the said investigation shall also be

protected to the same extent as the Whistleblower.

Disq ualifications:

o While it will be ensured that genuine Whistleblowers are accorded complete
protection from any kind of unfair treatment as herein set out, any abuse of this
protection will warrant disciplinary action.

o Protection under this Policy would not mean protection from disciplinary action

arising out of false or bogus allegations made by a Whistleblower knowing it to be

false or bogus or with a mala fide intention.

o Whistleblowers, which make any Protected Disclosures, which have been

subsequently found to be mala fide, frivolous or malicious, shall be liable for
disciplinary action under the Company's Code of Conduct besides being disqualified
from reporting further Protected Disclosures. In case of repeated frivolous complaints

being filed by a Whistle Blower, the Audit Committee or Vigilance and Ethics Officer
may take suitable action against such person including reprimand.

Secrecy/Con fi d ential ity:

The Whistleblower, Vigilance and Ethics Officer, Chairman of the Audit Committee,

Members of Audit Committee, subjects, any of the Investigators and everybody involved in
the process shall maintain confidentiality of all matters under this policy, discuss only to the

extent or with those person as required under this policy for completing the process of
investigations and keep the papcrs in safe custody.



Decision:

The decision of the Vigilance and Ethics Officer or Chairman of the Audit Committee should

be considered as final and no challenge against the decision would be entertained, unless

additional information becomes available.

Rerrorting:

A regular report with number of complaints received under the Policy and their outcome shall

be placed before the Audit Committee and the Board.

Risht to Amendment:

The Company holds the right to amend or modify the policy. Any amendment or

modification of the policy would be done by an appropriate authority as mandated in law.

The modified Vigil mechanism would be shared with the employees in writing, in absence of
which the same shall not be binding on the employees and the Directors.



ANNEXURE - V
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company

with related parties refened to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,2013

including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at arm's length basis:

Sr.

No.

Name(s)

of the

Related

Party and

nature of

relationshi

p

Nature of

contracts /

arrangeme

nts /

transactio

NS

Duration

of the

contracts

arrangem

ents /

transacti

ons

Salient

terms of the

contracts or

arrangement

sor

transactions

including

the value, if
any

Justificatio

n for

entering

into such

contracts

or

arrangeme

nts or

transaction

s

Date(s)

of

approval

by the

Board

Amount

paid as

advance,

if any

Date on

which the

special

resolution

was passed

in general

meeting as

required

under first

proviso to

section 188



2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis

FOR AND BEHALF OF'MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

sd/- sd/-

Shyam Sunder Agrawal

Director

DIN: 00355837

Saurabh Garg

Director

DIN: 00376890

Date:2810812024

Place: Mumbai

Sr.

No.

Name of the

related party

and nature of

relationship

Nature of

contracts /

arrangements

/ transactions

Duration of

contracts /

arrangements

/ transactions

Salient

features of

contracts /

arrangements

/ transactions,

including

value, if any

Date(s) of

approval

by the

Board

Amount

paid as

advances,

if any

I City Land and

Housing LLP-

Associate

concern

Rent Paid 2023-24 24000 old

Approval

NIL



ANNEXURE VI

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) &

5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)

Rules, 2014 are given below:-

Disclosure in Directors report relating to Rule 5(1):

l. Ratio of Remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees for the

financial year ended 3lst March, 2024 - Not Applicable as no remuneration is paid to the

directors.

2. oZ Increase in remuneration of each Director, CFO, CEO, CS or Manager in the financial

year.

Name of the Director, CFO, CEO, CS or Manager %o Increase

Mr. Manojkumar Omprakash Chaudhari- CEO Nil

Mr. Amit Mishra - CFO 40%

Ms. Agrima Shah - CS Nil

During the year ended 31st March,2024, there was no change in the median

remuneration of employees.

Number of permanent Employees on the roll of the company is 3 as on 3lst March,

2024.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there

are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration - No

salaries were paid to its employees.

J.

4.

5.



6. The company has not paid any remuneration to the directors during the current year,

however, the Company has remuneration policy in place for the payment of the same.

Disclosure in Directors report relating to Rule 5(2) and 5(3) respectively:

l. Names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every

employee, who :

. if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that

year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees-

Not Applicable

if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any

part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and

fifty thousand rupees per month - Not Applicable

if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof was in receipt of

remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate

which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or

whole{ime director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse

and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the

company. : Not Applicable
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended 3l st March 2024)

[Pursuant to Section 201(l) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
()ompanies (Appointment and Remuneralion of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014J

To,

The Members
Microse India Limited
421, Maker Chamber-V, Nariman Point,

Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400021

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate practices by Microse India Limited ("The Company") CN
L32201MH1988PLC152404 for the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March
2024. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on the verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and

clarifications given to me and the representations made by the Management, I hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on Financial year ended March, 2024
("Audit Period"), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company

has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and

subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31't March 2024 according to the

provisions of:

i. The Companies Act,2013 ("the Act") and the Rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the Rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings. (There were no reportable events during the period under review).

v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ("the SEBI Act"): -

Microse India Limited (Secretarial Audit Reprt 2023-24 Page I
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 201 l;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clienl;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (nctt applicable to the Company during lhe period under review)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
(not applicable to the Company during the period under review)

I The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,20lS; (not
applicable to the Company during the period under review)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (lssue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (not applicable to the Company during lhe period under review) and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021. (not applicable to the Company during the period wder review)

vi. Other laws as may be applicable to the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

r Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia
. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder (the Listing Regulations

to the extent applicable)

During the period under the review, the Company has complied with the provisions of Acts, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above.

We have not examined compliance by the company with applicable financial laws, like direct and

indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by the statutory auditors and other

desi grated professionals.

With reference to the compliance of Industry Specific Acts of the company, the company being a
NBFC Company, they need to eflsure relevant provisions and process on periodical basis. In this

regard, I have relied upon Management Representation issued to me and report of Statutory and

lntemal Auditors. My report of compliance would be limited to their reporting and subject to the

observations and comments made by them in their report, if any.

Microse InrJia Limited (Secretarial Aulit Report 2025-U1 Page 2
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I believe that the Audit evidence which I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for nty audit opinion. In my opinion and to the best of the information and according to explanations
given to me, I believe that the compliance management system of the Company is adequate to ensure

compliance of laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc specifically applicable to the Company.

I further report that:
l. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women and Independent Directors. Changes took place

in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review in compliance
with the provisions of the applicable laws.

2. Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board meetings (including
Committee meetings), agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance for meetings other than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further infonnation and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. Majority decisions at the Board meetings and Committee meetings were carried out
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or
Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of tlre company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidel ines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Company had no event which had bearing on the

Courpany's alTairs in pursuance of the above refemed larvs. rules, regulations, guidelines, standards

etc. referred to above.

I further report that during the period under review, I have following observations:

r I further report that as per Regulation 15 of The Securities and Exchange board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 compliance with the

corporate governance provisions as specified in regulations 17, 17 A, I 8, 19, 20, 27, 22, 23,
24,24A,25,26,27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and
para C, D and E of Schedule V are not applicable to the company including the company has

assured that the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report is not applicable to the company.

Microse India Limited (Seueturial Audit Report 2025-U1 Page 3
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r The Company has been registered as NBFC (Non-Banking Financial Company) under

Section 45lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
.l 
934. As per the information search out at the

website of the Reserve Bank of lndia, as on date of this report, the NBFC (Non-Banking

Financial Company) status of the company is not traceable. Hence, I am not able to form an

opinion as to whether the said non-traceable status was also applicable on the company during

the period under scrutiny, or not.

For Akash Jain,
Company Secretaries,

Place: Agra
Date:28.08.2024

This Report is to be read with our lctter of even date which
Forms an integral part of this report

sd/-
Akash Jain
Proprietor

FCS: 9617 C.Pz 9432

lCSl UDIN: F009617F001060777

is anncxcd as Annexure A and

Microse India Limited (Secrearial Audit Report 202 j-24 Page 4
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Annexure A

To,
The Members
Microse India Limited
CIN: L3220 I MH I 988PLC 1 52404

421, Maker Chamber-V, Nariman Point,

Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400021

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness ofthe contents ofthe secretarial records. The verification was done on

test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process

and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of
Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Agra
Date:28.08.2024

For Akash Jain,
Company Secretaries,

sd/-
Akash Jain
Proprietor

FCS: 9617 C.P:9432
ICSI UDIN: F00961 7F00fi6$777

Microse India Limited (Seuetariat Audit Report 2023-20 Page 5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members Of M/s Microse India Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

QUALIFIED OPINION
We have audited the accompanying Standalone IND AS Financial Statements of
MICROSE INDIA LIMITED (of the Company). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive
Income, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary
of the significant accounting policies, and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as "the Standalone Financial Statements") In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
motters described in the Basis of Opinion Section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2024, its Loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing [SAs] specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The company has currently recorded its investrnents and inventory of both quoted and
unquoted equity share instruments qt cost value. However, in accordance with IND AS 109
accounting guidelines, it should be valued at Fair Value throttgh Profit and Loss.
In our opinion, the company's decision to retain delisted stocks in inventory without writittg
theru off is not in accorelance with the lndian Accounting Standqrds 102. As these stocks
are no longer actively traded and may lack a reliable ntorket value, failing to impair their
value or wrile them o/f could result in an overstatentent of inventory.
In our opinion, the company's decision to retain delisted stocks in its investment portfolio
without writirtg theru off is not fiily in contplionce witlt the accounting stonclorcls. Delisted
str-tcks, wlich are no lotrger actively traded, may not have a reliable nrurket valLte, and as
such, there is a risk tltat their canying value is overstated.

ll2, Maker Bhavan No. 3.,I"t Floor,2l New Marine Lines, Mumbai - 400 020. INDIA.
T el: * 9l-22-22083115 / 22068264 | todarwal@todarwal.com I www.todarwal.com

ICAI Regn.:W100231 | LLP Regn: AAJ-9964
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Key Audit Nlatters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We do not have any material observations to report on the above matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statcments or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. On the basis of the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is no material misstatement of this other
information, hence we have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statemcnts that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or eror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managcfilcnt eitlicr intends to liquidatc the Company or to cease opcrations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Thc Board of Dircctors arc rcsponsiblc for ovcrsccing tlic Con.rpany's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilitics for thc Audit of thc St:rndalone Financial St:rtements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs

Page 2 of ll
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will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible forexpressing our opinion on whctherthe
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going conccrn basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cornpany's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date ofour auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effcct of any identificd
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also providc those charged with governance with a statcment that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

_l
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From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the

Companies Act 2013, we give in the 'Annexure A', a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and4 ofthe Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
ofour knowledge and beliefwere necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Company has no branch office and hence the company is not required to conduct
audit under section 143 (8) of the Act;

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash flow statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 exceptfor qualified opinion stated above.

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3l't March
2024, none of the directors are disqualified as on 3l't March 2024 from being appointed as

a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
ofthe Company and the operating effcctiveness ofsuch controls, refcr to our separate report
in "Annexure B"; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,in our opinion and to the

best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations that needs to be disclosed in Financial
Statcments.

ii, Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not
have any long-term contracts, including derivatives, for which provisions for material
foreseeable losses need to be provide.
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iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) (ii)Whether the management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entiry(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Benefi ciaries; and

c) Bascd on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. The company, in respect of financial year commencing on or after the lst April,
2023,has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature ofrecording audit trail (edit log) facility.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from lst April,2023, reporting under Rule I I (g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements
for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 3lstMarch,2024

For Todarwal & Todarwal LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Reg. No.: W100231

SD/-

Kunal Todarwal
Partner
M. No: 137804
UDIN: 24131 804BIZWQR6066
Date d: 29'h May ,2021
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure - A to Independent Auditoros Report

The 'Annexure A' referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of the Company on

the Financial Statements for the year ended 3 I't March 2024, we report that:

(i) (a) (e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records
produced before us, we are of the opinion that the Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative details and the situation of Property, Plant &
Equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanation given to us and based upon the records
produced before us, the company has no intangible assets during the year. Hence, the
provisions of this sub-clause are not applicable to the company

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, fixed assets were physically
verified by the management.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records
produced before us there are no immovable properties. Hence this clause is not applicable .

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records
produced before us, the company has neither revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
nor any intangible assets during the year. Hcnce, the provisions ofthis sub-clause are not
applicable to the company.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based upon the records
produced before us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has inventory in
form ofequity securities during the year .The inventory is form ofphysical share certificates
or in Demat form. The verification for the physical certificates has been done whereas for
dernaterialized form it is not required.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based upon the records
produced before us, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial instirutions on the basis of security
of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of this sub-clause are not applicable to the

company.

(iiD According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted advances in the nature of loans,

securcd or unsccurcd, to companics, finns, lirnitcd liability partncrships or any othcr partics

during the year. The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, lirnited
liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Hence this section is not applicable.
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(iv)

Chartered Accoun[ants

(v)

(vi)

As the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates or to other parties, this section is not
applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any
deposits within the meaning of Section 7 3 to 7 6 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has no cost records
as specified by the Central Covemment under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, hence
this provision is not applicable.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed stahrtory dues including Provident fund, Employees' State
Insurance, Income-tax, Coods and Services tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other material
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees' State
Insurance, Income- tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 3l't March,2024, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record produced before
us, no disputed amounts are payable in case of Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory
dues.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, l96l as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i*) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records provided
to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. Hence this clause is not applicable .

According to the information and explanation given to us and the record produced before us,
the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
and by way of any term loan. Hence, the provisions of this clause are not applicable to the
company.

The company has not privately placed compulsory convertible debentures during the year and
the reqrrirements of section42 and section 62 of the Companies Act,2013. Hence this clause
is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books of account carricd in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing standards in India, we have neither colxe across any instance of
fraud on or by the Company, either noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of such case by the Management.

(^) (u)

(xi) (a)

(b) No report has been filed under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act by the

(b)
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Chartered Accountants

auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Cornpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government"

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records produced

before us, no complaints of the whistle-blower have been received by the company during the

yeat.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi Company as prescribed under section 406 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the

provision of this clause is not applicable to the company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record produced before us,

all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act,2013, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements, as required by the applicable Accounting Standards

(xiv) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the records produced
before us, the company has mandatory requirement to implement an intemal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The company has appointed an internal auditor. The internal audit report that has been

provided to us have been considered before formulating an opinion.

(*v) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or psrsons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be

registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(xvii) According to the information and explanation given to us and the record produced before us,

the company has not incurred cash losses in the current period and the previous year .

(xviii) The statutory auditors resigned during the year, and we have since filled the casual vacancy.
The previous auditor stepped down due to being preoccupied with other work. No reasons

suggesting a negative impact on the company were given by the former auditor.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets

and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,

the auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the

opinion that no material uncertainty exists regarding company's capability of meeting its
liabilities payable within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, as and when they
fall due.

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,lays down the applicability for the Corporate Social
Responsibility. The company doesn't exceed the lirnits given in the said section and hence,

section 135 of the Companies Act,20l3 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the

provisions of this clause are not applicable to the company.

The company does not prepare Consolidated Financial Statements as it does not have any
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. Accordingly, the provisions of this clause are not

applicable to the company.

(xx)

(xxi)
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For Todarwal & Todarwal LLP
Chartered Accountants ICAI Regn No: W100231

SD/-

Kunal Todarwal
Partner
Membership No: 137804
UDN: 24137 804BJZWQR6066
Date:29'h May ,2024
Place: Mumbai
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Annerure - R to the Indcf t'nderrt Audilors' I{cport

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Microse India

Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2024 inconjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence

to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as requircd undcr the Companies Act,20l3.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Cuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of intcrnal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

undcrstanding of internal financial controls ovcr financial reporting, assessing the risk that a

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including tlre assessment of the risks of matcrial misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
rcporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
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reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (l) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Rcporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Cornpany has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial

reporting were operating e ffcctivcly as at 3 I st March, 2024,basedon thc intcrnal control over
financial rcporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Todarwal & Todarwal LLP Chartered Accountants
ICAI RegnNo:W100231

SD/.

Kunal Todanval
Partncr
Membership No: 137804
UDIN: 24 131 8048 JZWQR6066

Dated: 29'h May ,2024
Place: Mumbai
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MICROSE INDIA LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2024

in

Sr. No. Pa rticu la rs Note
No

As at 31 st March,
2024

As at 31st March,
2023

As at lst April,
2022

1

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

(f)

(s)

(h)

(i)

(i)

2

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

liii

',J

lassets
lNon Current Assets
I

lProperty, Plant and Equioment
I

Capital Work in Progress
lnvestment Property

Goodwill

Other lntangible assets
lntangible assets in development
Biological Assets other than bearer plant
Financial Assets
i. lnvestments

ii. Trade Receivables
Defferred Tax Assets
Other non current assets
Total Non Current Assets
Current Assets
lnventories

Financial Assets

Investments

Irade receivables

3ash and Cash Equivalents
3ank balances other than above

-oans
)thers
lurrent tax Assets
)ther Current Assets
lotal Current Assets

4

5

2

3,449

3,451

6,107

6,634

83

62

13

12,899

2

3,449

3,451

8,301

8,034

'135

10

16,551

3,4_49

,,ou',

8,301

8.034

46

auu

0

16.736
Total Assets 1 6,350 20,002 20,187

1

(a)

(b)

2

(a)

(i)

(i i)

(i ii)

(b)

(c)
(d)

J

(a)

iiil
(b)

(c)
(d)

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Equity Share

Other Equity

Total Equity

Capital

Current Liabilities
Liabilities

lOther Loans

Joepostt

lTrade Payables

lOther financial liabilities
I

lProvisions

lDefferred 
Tax Liabilities (Net)

Other non current liabilities

Total Non Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other financial liabilities

Other Current Liabilities
Provisions

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Current Liabilities

10

11

12

13

14

r:l

21,641

-10,522

11 ,119

0

0

4,725

J40

160

5,231

21,641
-6,702

14,939

0

0

4,641

270

152

5 063

21,641

-6,305

15,336

U

0

4,400

294

153

4.851
Total Equity and Liabilities 16,3s0 20,002 20.187

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our Report attached
For, Todarwal & Todarwal LLP

Chartered Accountants
F. R. No. 111009WW100231

sd/-
CA Kunal S. Todarwal
Pa rtner
M.No. 137804

U Dl N :-241378048JZWQR6066

Place : Mumbai
Datet 2910512024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Microse India Limited

sd/-
Shyam Sunder
DtN-0035s837

sd/-
Saurabh Garg
DrN-00376890

sd/- sd-
Manoj Chaudhari Amit Kumar Mishra

CEO CFO

sd/-
Mini Goyal

cs



Sr. No. Partlculars Note No Current Year previous Year
I

il
Revenue from Operations
Other lncome

1 7

18
1,650

626 r,gso
lil Total lncome (l+ll) 2,276 1,956
IV Expenses

Cost of materials Consumed
Purchases of Stock in Trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in- Trade
and work -in-progress
Employees benefits expenses
Financial cost
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other Expenses

20
21
22

19

23

1,629

2,194
1,188

345

740

1,O57

315

980
Total expenses (lV) 6,096 2,352

VI
ProfiU(loss) exceptional items and tax (l-lV)
Exceptional ltems - Prior period Expenditure

3,820
:'u

vil ProfiU(loss) before tax (V-Vl) -3,820 -396

IXVI

XVII

XVIII

lvilrlrlz
lrx

lr
lxrr
lxrrr
Ixrv
I oci
I riirI ,,,,
I tiir

1

2

1

2

1

2

XV

fax expenses
Current Tax
Deferred Tax liability / (Assets)
Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations (Vll-
vilr)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operatlons
Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax)
ProfiU(loss) for the period (lX+Xll)
Other Comprehensive lncome
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss.
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss.
lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss.

Total comprehensive lncome for the period (Xlll+X1y;
(Comprising profit (loss) and other comprehensive income
tor the period)

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations)
3asic
f iluted
:arning per equity share (for discontinued operations)
3asic
liluted
:arnings per equity share (for discontinued and continuing
>perations) 

Ilasic 
I)iluted I

0

-3,820

-s,8zo

-3,820

-1.27
-1.27

0

:nu

-:'u

-396

-0.13
-0.13

MICROSE INDIA LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

As per our Report attached
For, Todarwal & Todarwal LLP

Chartered Accountants
F. R. No. 111009W/ W100231

sdl-
CA Kunal S. Todarwal
Partner
M.No. 137804

U Dl N :-241378048JZWQR6066
Place: Mumbai
Date: 29lOSl2O24

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Microse !ndia Limited

Amount in Rs.'000

sd/-
Saurabh Garg

DtN-00376890

sd/- sd/-
Amit Kumar Mishra Mini Goyal

CFO CS

sd/-
Shyam Sunder
DrN-00355837

sd/-
Manoj Chaudhari

CEO



MICROSE INDIA LIMITED

M/s. Microse tndia Limited (the company) is
incorporated under the companies Act 1956:

2. Siqnificant Accountinq policies:

1. Basis Of Accountinq:

a limited company domiciled in lndia and

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standard(lnd AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certainfinancial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the companiesAct, 2013 ('the Act') (to the exten_t notified) and guioelines issueJ ov g," securities andExchange Board o-f tndia (sEBl). The lnd AS 
"r" [rescribeo under section 133 of the Actread with Rule 3 of the companies (lndian Accounting standards) nureq iors and relevantamendment rules issued thereafter. Accounting poicies have 

'been 
consistenly appliedexcept where a newly issued accounting standird is initially adopted 
-or 

a revision to anexisting accounting standard requires a change in the accouniing policy hitherto in use.

2. Use Of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnd-AS requires management tomake judgments, estimates and assumptions that afiect the reported amounts of revenues,expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end ofreporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management,s best knowledgeof current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates couldresult in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the cairying ,rornt, of assets orliabilities in future periods.

3. Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulatedimpairment losses, if any. The co.st comprises purchase price, borrowing costs ifcapitalization criteria are met and directly attributabte cost of' bringing the asset to itsworking condition for the intended use. nny trade discounts and rebates are deducted inarriving at the purchase price. subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is

1. General Corporate lnformation:



added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing assetbeyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existingfixed assets, including repairs and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, arecharged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses areincurred. Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on " Straight Line Method,,as perSchedule ll of the companies Act, 2013.

4. lnvestments

lnvestments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than oneyear from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as currentinvestments. All other investments are classified as longterm investments. on initialrecognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price anddirectly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. lf aninvestment is acquired,-or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, theacquisition cost is the fair value of the securities issued. lf an investment is acquired inexchange for another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value ofthe asset given up or by reference to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever ismore clearly evident. Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower ofcost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long term investmentsare carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is ma-oe to recognize adecline other than temporary in the value of the investments. on disposal of an investment,the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged orcredited to the statement of profit and loss.

5. Revenue recoqnition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flowto the Company and the revenue. c-an be reliably measured. The following specificrecognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

lncome from trading in securities and derivatives comprises profiyloss on sale of securitiesheld as stock-in{rade and profit/loss on related derivaiive instruments. Sales and purchase
would include expenses which are included as a part of the contract wherever applicable.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is established
by the reporting date.

lnterest

lnterest on investments and bank deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis takinginto account the amounts invested and the rate appfcabre.



6. Earninq Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an
equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully
paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such aJ bonus issue, bonui
element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net piofit oiloss
for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

7. lncome Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current incometax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the lncome tax Act,
1961 enacted in lndia. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating
to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of
profit and loss. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between
taxable income and accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of
timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using ihe tax rates and the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the
statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing
differences.

8. Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits witi be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based
on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

9. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank
and cash/ cheques/ drafts on hand and short term investments with an original maturity of
three months or less.



Microse lndia [imited

Notes forming part of financial Statement

Note :4 Non Current lnvestments

Fair Value

tn
Note :3 Property, Plant &

NAIVE OF ASSETS

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
Opening

Balance as at

07-04-2023

Addition for

the year

Sales

During the

vear

Gross Block as

0n

37-03-2024

As At

07-04-2023

Depreciatio

n for the

vear

Sales As At

3110312024

As At

37-03-2024

As At

31-03-2023

l.Computer & Printer

2.Furniture & Fixture

3.Camera

Total

285

L7

1

285

11

7

283

1,L

L

283

11

1

2 2

297 297 295 295 2 2

Particulars
Amount in (Rs.in

As at37/03/2024 As atgt/O3/2023 As ato7l04l2o22
lShare lnvestments
l_........._...._--
17400 

Shares of Marnite polycast Ltd
10000 Shares of Mideast lntegrated Steel Ltd
1600 Shares of ND Metal lndustries Ltd
1333 Shares of Parenteral Drugs (lndia) Ltd
9700 Shares of Prakash Woolen Mills Ltd
1-15 Shares of Punjab National Bank Ltd.
50000 Shares of Shrishma Fine Chemicals Ltd
2850 Shares of Super Syncotex (lndia) Ltd

74

200

78

45

295

6

1,608

743

74

200

78

45

295

6

1,608

743

74

200

78

45

295

6

1,608

143
td/ 2,449 2,449 2,449

Mutual Fund lnvestment

1qqq00 Units of SBt Magnum Multicap Fund - Reeular plan 1,000 1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000 1,000

Iotal (a+b)
3,449 3,449 3,449

Particulars Asat37lO3/2024 Asat3UO3|2O2Z As atOT/04/2o22

17400 
Shares of Marnite polycast Ltd

11.0000 
Shares of Mideast tntegrated Steel Ltd

L600 Shares of ND Metal lndustries Ltd
1333 Shares of Parenteral Drugs (lndia) Ltd
9700 Shares of Prakash Woolen Mllls Ltd
115 Shares of Punjab National Bank Ltd.
50000 Shares of Shrishma Fine Chemicals Ltd
2850 Shares of Super Syncotex (lndia) Ltd

Not Available

Not Available

166

Not Available

345

15

Not Available

Not Available

Not Available
Not Available

72

6

203

5

Not Available

Not Available

Not Available

101

42

7

694

4

Not Available

Not Available
rotal (a)

526 286 848

Mutual Fund lnvestment
100000 Units of SBI Magnum Multicap Fund - Reeular plan 4,319 3,303 3,477

( rJ, 4,319 3,303 3,477

Iotal
4,845 3,589 4,259



Microse lndia Limited

Note : 5 lnventories

Note : 6 Trade Receivables

Note : 8 Current Tax Assets

Note : 9 Other Current Assets

Amount in

Particulars As at3L(O3/2O24 As at3Ll03l2O23 As at oL/0412o22

Stock-in-trade (Shares) 6,107 8,301 8,301

lotal 6,1O7 8,301 8,301

Amount in (Rs.in '000
Particulars As at3Ll03l2O24 As at31/03/2023 Asat.9tl0412022

Unsecured, Considered Goods 6,634 8,034 8,034

Total 6,634 8,034 8,034

Note : 7 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Pa rticulars As at3UO3(2O24 As at37lo3l2023 As atOLl04l2O22
Bank Balances with Current A/c
Cash in Hand

48

35

23

48

74

32

fotal 83 71 46

Amount in (Rs.in '000)

As at3t/O3/2O24 As ar3UO3l2o23 As atOtl04/2022
Advance Tax & T.D.S 62 L35 355

Iotal 62 135 3s5

Amount in

Particulars As at3tl03l2024 As at3L/03/2023 As atOLlO4l2022
Prepaid Expenses

Total
13 10 0
13 L0 0

Note : 10 Equity Share Capital

Amount in (Rs.in
Particulars As at3UO3/2O24 As at37lO3l2O23 AsatOUo4l2O22

Authorised Share Capital

3,050,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 30,s00 30,s00 30,500

Tota I 30,500 30,500 30,500

lssued, subscribed and fully paid

1,3,62,400 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
16,40,600 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each Rs.5/- paid up
Allotment Money in Arrears

Note :- Call Money for 74,400 Equity Shares @ Rs.2=50 Per Share
is receivable from Shareholders.

1.3,624

8,203
-186

1.3,624

8,203

-186

L3,624

8,203
-186

Iotal 2L,641 27,641 27,64L



Microse lndia Limited

Rights, preferences and restrictions regarding each class of shares:

The company has isued only one class ofshares referred to as Equity shares with par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

The company has not declared dividend for the current year. However, in case dividend is declared the distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Note : 11 Other Equity

Particulars As at3tll3l2024 As at3L/o312023 AsatOtl0412022

I Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding

It,lumber 
of shares at the beginning of the year

lAdd 
:- issued during the year

I Number of shares at the end of the year
I

Reconciliation of amount of share capital
Amount of share capital at the beginning of the year
Add : - lssued during the year
Amount of share cqpital at the end of the year

Nos

30,03,000

30,03,000

Nos

30,03,000

30,03,000

Nos

30,03,000

30,03,000

21,,641,

21,,64L

Rs.

21,,641,

21,,64r

Rs.

21,,641

21,641,

Rs.

Particulars As at3LlO3l2O24 As at3Ll03l2o23 As atOLl04l2O22

Atirek Garg

% of Holding

Nos

2,45,L00

8.1,6%

Nos

2,45,100

8.76%

Nos

2,45,700

8.t6%

Share application money pending for allotment
Genera I Reserve Account

Profit & loss Account:-

Opening Balance

Add/ (less): Transfer from profit & Loss Statement
Add/ (less): Adjustment of Taxation

Amount

12 Defferred Tax Liabilities

Borrowings

Particulars As at3LlO3l2024 As at3L/03/2023 As at 0L10412022
Deferred Tax Liability
Add/ (less): Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) for the year

0

0

0

0

0

0
Total 0 0 0

Particulars As at31lO3l2024 As at3LlO3/2023 As atOUO4|2022
from Directors 4,725 4,647 4,400
Total 4,725 4,641 4,400



Microse lndia limited

Note : 14 Other Current Libilities

Note : 15 Provisions

Note : 16 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Note : 17 Revenue from Operations

Note : 18 Other lncome

Note : 19 Purchases

Amount in (Rs.in '000)

Particulars As at3L|O3/2O24 As at3UO3|2O23 As atOL/0412O22

Creditors for Expenses

TDS Payable
304

42
232

38

250

48

Iotal 346 270 298

Amount in (Rs.in
Particulars As at31lO3lZO24 As at3uo3lz023 AsatOL/o412022

Provision for Employees benefits 160 152 153

Total 160 L52 153

Particulars As at3UO3/2024 As atst/03/2023 As atOtlO4l2O22

Provision for lncome Tax

Total

Particulars Current Year
:nt in (Rs.in '000)

Previous Year
Sa les 1,650

Total 1,650

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Professional fee 600 1,950
nterest received on lncome tax Refund 3 6

Dividend Received 23 0
Other lncome 0
fotal 626 L,956

Amount in
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Purchases

Total
1,629

7,629

Note : 20 Changes in lnventory of Stock-in-trade

Amount in (Rs.in
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

lnventories at the beginning of the year
lnventories at the end of the year

8,301

6,1,07

8,301

8,301

Total 2,794



Microse lndia limited

Note : 21 Employees Benefits Expenses

Note : 22 Financial Cost

Note : 23 Other Expenses

Amount in (Rs.in '000)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Salary to Staff
Staff Welfare Expenses

1,1,82

6

1,051

6

Iotal
1,199 t,o57

Particulars
nt in (Rs.in

Current Year Previous Year
nterest Expenses 345 3ls

lotal
345 315

Amou

Amou
Particulars

Amount in (Rs.in '000)

-

Current Year I previous year
lAdvertising Expenses

lnnnual Listing Fee

lArdit r".
laank charges

lConr"yrn." Expenses

loemat Charges

lritine ree

I General Expenses

I License Fee

lvembership Fee

I 
Postage & Courier Charges

lcrinting & Stationery

lProfessional fee
I

Remission of Mat
Rent

Share Transaction Charges

Telephone Expenses

1,L

383

59

L

6

2

7

1,9

22

4

4

1,82

24

74

2

36s

4T

1

6

5

16

7

72

5

3

180

205

732

,l
Iotal

740 980

l



24. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:-

Advances on realization in the ordinary course of business will not be less than the amount
at which they are stated in the balance sheet. The provisions of all known liabilities are
adequate and reasonable.

cost, however as mentioned some shares are non traded in market which are listed in
stock exchange and some shares are non listed, therefore it is difficult to ascertain its
realizable value.

Particulars

Key Management Personnel

Partnership Firm/LLP

Transactions

Rent
Salary
lnterest

Name

Shyam Sunder
Saurabh Garg
Manoj Chaudhari
Amit Kumar Mishra
Agrima Shah

City Land and Housing LLp

Kev Manaqement

1,;;
3,45

(Rs. in'000)

59

Relationship

Director
Director
CEO
CFO
Company Secretary

Associate Concern

Associate Concern
C.Y. P.Y. C.Y. P.Y.

(Rs. in'000) (Rs. in'000) (Rs. in'000) (Rs.in ,000)

Particulars

Audit Fee

54 24 24
1,057
315

F.Y.2023-24 F.Y.2022-23

(Rs.in'000)

41



2023-24 2022-23
Basic/ Diluted (tn Rs. ,000) 

ttn ns. OOOI

Profit / (Loss) After Tax -3,g20 -396
No. of shares (Face value Rs.10A) 30,03,000 3O,O3,0OO
Basic/ Diluted EPS in Rs. -1.22 -0.13

shares, securities, future and option) as its primary segment.

Particulars Less than 6m 6m-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years &
above 3 vrs

Total

Undisputed
Considered
Good

6,634 6,634

Undisputed-
Doubtful
Disputed-
qood

Disputed-
Doubtful

Ratios

31st Mar'24 31st Mar'23
a) Debts Equity Ratio 0.42 0.31
b) Current Ratio 2.47 3.27
c) Debtors Turnover Ratio 4.02
d) Operating Margin (%) - 1.68 - 0.20
e) Net Profit Margin (%) - 1.68 - 0.20

The additional disclosure requirements as per amendments to schedule lll of Companies
Act 2013 are as follows: -

135 of Companies Act ,2015

their intended purpose.



(vi)Registration of charges or satisfaction. There are no charges against the company.

(vii)Relationship with Struck off Companies: Not Applicable.

Assets. Not Applicable and no revaruation was done of Fixed asseis.'

Currency.

confirm to current year's classification.

As per Our report of even date

For Toderwal & Toderwal LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.n o.1 1 1009WW1 00231

sd/-
(C.A. Kunal S Toderwal)

Partner
Mem.No.137804

U Dl N : 241 37 804BJZWQR6066

Place: Mumbai

Date:2910512024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/- sd/-
(Shyam Sunder) (Saurabh Garg)

Director Director
DIN: 00355837 DIN: 00376890

sd/- sd/-
(Manoj Chaudhari) (Amit Kumar Mishra)cEo cFo

sd/-
(Mini Goyal)

CS



Microse India Limited

STATEMENTOF CASH FLOW as on31IO3I2O24

Cash Flow From Operatinq Activities
Profit before tax

Less:

Dividend Received

lnterest Received

Add:

Depreciation

Interest & finance Charges

Operating Profit before working Capital
Changes

Working Capital Changes
(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventories
(lncrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
(lncrease)/Decrease in Other Current Assets
(lncrease)/Decrease in Current Tax Asset
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in Provision

lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other
Liabilities

(lncrease)/Decrease in Working Capital

Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Tax Adjustment

Cash Used (-)/(+) generated for
operating activities ( A )
Cash Flow From lnvesting Activities
Dividend Received

lnterest Received

Net Cash Used in lnvesting Activities ( B )

(38,20,232)

(23,075)

(3,96,33

3,1 5,387

(10,300)

2,19,973

1,80,825

2,48,187

2

2,48,189

Particular As at3110312024 As at3110312023

21,93,763

14,00,000

72,700
(536)

73,884

8,613

(35.00.237 (80.944

(3s,00,237

37,48,424

(80,944

2

25,775

1,029

99,881

('t,029

98,8s2

23,075
2 70r]



G Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Finance Cost

Short Term borrowings received

Proceeds from Issue of Shares

Proceeds from Share Application Money

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities ( C )

D Net lncrease (+)/ Decrease (-) in
cash and cash equivalent ( A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalent Opening Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalent Closing Ealance

(3,45,770)

83,6'15

12,62,155)

I 1,809

(3,15,387)

2,41 ,847

(73,540)

25,312

7't,217 45,905
83,026 71,2',t7

As per our Report attached
For, Todarwal & Tosarwal t[P
Chartered Accountants
F. R. No. 111009WW100231

sdl-
CAKunalSLTodarwal
Pa rtner
M.No. 137804

U DIN :- 241378048JZWQR6066

Place: Mumbai

Datei 29/05/2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Microse lndia Limited

sd/-
Shyam Sunder
Director
DrN- 00355837

sd/- sd/-
Manoj Chaudhari Amit Kumar Mishra
CEO CFO

sd/-
Saurabh Garg

Director
DrN- 00376890

sd/-
Mini Goyal

Company Secretary


